Minutes for Town of Minnesott Beach

Board of Commissioners' Meeting
June 13,2017

The meeting of the Board of Commissioners (BOC), Town of Minnesott Beach, was held
Tuesday, June 13, 2017 at 7:00 P.M at the Minnesott Beach Town Hall.

Board members present: Mayor Josh Potter, Commissioner Tim Fowler, Commissioner
Carolyn Casey, Commissioner Cliff Braly and Commissioner Eber Warren.

Board members absent: none

Others present: Carolyn Braly, Town Manager, Donna Scott, Town Clerk, Adam
Garfinkel and Pete Hall of the Planning Board and Becca Lang from Arlington Place.

Mayor Potter welcomed everyone to the meeting, called the meeting to order at 7:00pm
with a moment of silence and lead everyone in the pledge of alliance to the flag.

Mayor Potter called for any discussion or revision to the June 13,2017 BOC meeting
agenda. Mayor Potter asked to separate item #3 into two parts: #3 Master Plan and #4
Subdivision Plats and moving #4 to #5. Commissioner Fowler moved to approve the
agenda as amended. All ayes.

‘Mayor Potter called for any discussion or revision to May 9, 2017 meeting minutes.
Commissioner Warren moved to approve the minutes as submitted. All ayes.

Public Comments: None

Town Manager’s report: Two zoning permit applications were submitted and approved.
Mr. Don Lane, Country Club Drive West, is putting in a shed. And a fence at 309 Wild
Swan Lane, Arlington Place. An Application for a Zoning Amendment was received from
Mr. William Conklin owner of Lot 62C Mill Creek, Arlington Place. The Zoning
Administrator is aware it is here. Town Manager reported a complaint from Dave Stewart
regarding the loud speaker noise at Camp Seagull. They have been made aware of the
complaint.

Planning Board Report: Chairman Adam Garfinkel presented to the BOC the
Resolution and the recommended proposed amendments to the UDO from the PB. They
are reference herein and can be viewed at the Town Hall.

Subdivision Plats for Lots 62, 62A and 62E located in Arlington Place. The Planning
Board by a vote of 5/0 recommended approval of the plat for Lot 62. The Planning Board
by a vote of 5/0 recommends approval of the plat for Lot 62A pending the agent
authorization notaries for the plat. By a vote of 5/0, the Planning Board recommends
approval of the plat for Lot 62E. Some questions were brought up about the “off-site
septic” which have been addressed in an email from Becca Lang dated June 12, 2017.




In terms of the Master Plan, Mr. Garfinkel said a letter from Doug Anderson dated June
12, 2017, addressed all changes made to the Revised Master Plan dated May 2017. By a
vote of 5/0 the Planning Board recommended conditional approval of the proposed
Revised Master Plan dated May 2017. The Planning Board recommends that CAMA
permits evidencing compliance with CAMA regulations for the proposed dog park and the
existing off site fenced storage.

Old Business: for discussion and possible motion or action.

1

Planning Board update recommendations for UDO — Commissioner Fowler
accepted the Resolution and recommendations from the Planning Board.

BOC regular meeting.

Arlington Place Subdivision Plats — Commissioner Fowler passed to Mayor Potter.
Mayor Potter said the AP subdivision plats (Lots 62, 62A & 62E) have been
determined to not qualify as an exempt subdivision(s) by feedback from the Adam
Lovelady of the SOG and the Town’s attorney, Jimmie Hicks. The plats did not
Anderson stating that Burton Farms concedes that Lots 62, 62A and 62E do not
meet the requirements for a subdivision exemption from regulations. A copy may
be viewed in the Town Hall.

Update on Town projects — Commissioner Braly reported Phase 2 of the Country
Club Drive West is complete and they will proceed to Phase 3 in another week or
two. The Town Hall addition will begin late this month. The Town clean up final
cost is $853.11. Commissioner Braly said he will be meeting with Paul Toler this
week to put work out a plan to put in hot asphalt in the pot holes on Hardison and
the other areas that currently have the “cold patch.” Mayor Potter thanked
Commissioner Braly for all of his hard work.

New Business: for discussion and possible motion or action.

1

Appoint new Planning Board member, Amy Edge — Commissioner Fowler reported
there are two vacancies on the PB and moved to approve the appointment of Amy
Edge to the Planning Board. All ayes.

Reappointment of Planning Board members Mac Rubel & Richard Hughes whose
term expire 1 July - Commissioner Fowler moved to reappoint Mr. Rubel & Mr.
Hughes to the Planning Board. All ayes.

Planning Board recommendations on Arlington Place’s Revised Master Plan —
Commissioner Fowler asked Mr. Garfinkel to confirm the PB approved the Revised
Master Plan with the conditions this plan meets all of the requirements of CAMA.
Mr. Garfinkel confirmed this was what the PB wanted. Ms. Lang said that a good

portion of AP is wet lands. After much discussion, Mayor Potter asked if a hearing

was needed to vote on the Revised Master Plan. Town Manager said she would find
out. Commissioner Fowler asked what does the PB want to ask AP to do regarding
the construction of the dog park &/or the storage with respect to CAMA



requirements. Ms. Lang asked about zoning permit requirements for fencing.
Commissioner Braly said the zoning administrator needs boundaries in order to
approve any use. Ms. Lang also asked where in the ordinances is the requirement
for a 4-foot fence for the dog park, she said there are ordinances for fences for yards
and pools. Commissioner Braly said dog parks are not listed as approved uses nor
are they banned. He said anything that is built needs a permit. Mayor Potter said
151.217 in the Minnesott Beach Code of Ordinances addresses conservation &
wetland areas requirements in the town. Commissioner Fowler moved to table
approval of the Master Plan until the July meeting. All ayes.

Arlington Place’s Sub-division plats - Commissioner Fowler said the Planning
Board had received Plats for 62, 62A and 62E and recommend accepting 62 and
62E. They recommended accepting 62A conditional to receiving notarized
signatures from owners identifying Becca Lang as their agent to sign the plat.
Mayor Potter asked Mr. Garfinkel if they had treated the plats as Minor or Major
subdivisions? Mr. Garfinkel said the PB had looked at the plats as Minor
Subdivisions. Mayor Potter said according to the Town’s ordinances, they cannot
be treated as Minor Subdivisions. 151.327 Procedures for review of Manor and
subdivisions except those defined as minor subdivisions in this section. Major
subdivisions shall be reviewed in accordance with the procedures in §§
151.330 through 151.333. Minor subdivisions shall be reviewed in accordance
with the provisions in § 151.328. However, if the sub divider owns leases,
holds an option on or holds any legal or equitable interest in any property
adjacent to or located directly across a street, easement, road or right-of-way
from the property to be subdivided, the subdivision shall not qualify under the
minor subdivision procedure. Furthermore, the abbreviated procedure may
not be used a second time within three years on any property less than 1,500
feet from the original property boundaries by anyone who owned, had an
option on or any legal or equitable interest in the original subdivision at the
time the subdivision received preliminary or final plat approval. Mr. Garfinkel
said the properties are privately owned. Mayor Potter said that was the
question. He said Burton Farms owns the kayak center, the streets, the
easements and the rights-of-ways and Lot 62. By definition, it cannot be
treated as a minor subdivision. Mr. Garfinkel said the Planning Board could
look at the plats again as a major subdivision. Mayor Potter said the
differences between a major and a minor subdivision is a minor subdivision
does not require a preliminary plat and a review by outside agencies is not
required. A-major subdivisionrequires a-preliminary plat and-outside agencies
review. Mr. Garfinkel asked since these structures have already been built if
this means the outside agencies have already signed off on them? Mayor Potter
said he would recommend to the BOC that we get legal advice regarding this.
He said looking at the plats he sees the owners of the subdivision are the
owners of the cottages. He asked about the commons areas? Who controls
these areas? He said that property has never been subdivided. It needs to be a
legal subdivision of these lots by Burton Farms before these people can create
a subdivision. These owners are currently creating a subdivision. We're
skipping over Burton Farms establishing a subdivision in order to sell these



cottages. Commissioner Fowler asked what difference does it make. Mayor
Potter said if the Town does something in violation of its own ordinances, it
puts the Town exposed to a lawsuit from anyone who wants to subdivide
property. Mayor Potter said what the board does in this situation, is going to
have a precedent on any other development in this town. Commissioner
Fowler said the lots have been subdivided and cottages sold so how does the
town move on from here. Mayor Potter said it has not been done legally and
needs to seek legal advice on how to get Burton Farms Development Co in
alignment with the laws of NC and the Ordinances of Minnesott Beach.
Commissioner Fowler agreed the town’s attorney needs to be consulted on
how to make this situation legal. Mayor Potter referenced NC Statutes 160A-
375 - Transferring of lots in an unapproved subdivision. Accordingly, Mayor
Potter said, Burton Farms could be forced by the court to repossess all of the
cottages they’'ve sold and start from scratch. Commissioner Fowler said he had
concerns for the people who've purchased the cottages. Mayor Potter said the
sales may not be legal. Mr. Garfinkel said one of the recommended changes to
151.168 is the ability of the BOC to waive an ordinance. Mayor Potter asked if
‘the-Planning-Board -had applied-the-check list in 151-335-to-these plats? Mr.
Garfinkel said they did not. Mayor Potter said this is a requirement. He said
the cottages were approved by the town’s zoning administrator under single
ownership, multifamily dwellings. The problem came when Burton Farms
Development Co. decided to subdivide the lots. That's where the problem
started. They do not have the legal right to subdivision Lots 62, 62A & 63E
until they had gone through the process of applying for a subdivision to the
Planning Board, applying the requirements of a subdivision in Minnesott Beach
found in sections 151.285-151.377, that did not happen. Mayor Potter said he
is sworn to uphold the Ordinances of the Town of Minnesott Beach. He read
into the record the following statement: The Town of Minnesott Beach has
seven zoning districts - R-15, R-20, R-M, Commercial, Commercial Marina,
Institutional and Public and RMU (Residential Mixed Use). RMU is a special
district which is controlled by its approved Master Plan and other applicable
sections in the town's UDO (Unified Development Ordinance). This district
currently is composed of Burton Farm Development Company's Arlington
Place as the only R-MU in the Town of Minnesott Beach. UDO 151.168 and UDO
151.370-377 address and guide RMU development. Special provisions and
waivers are included in the RMU District. The BOC can look at the waivers and
provisions that are peculiar to the R-MU to see what can be waived. To this
point the town has not been party to anything illegal or in violation of its
subdivision ordinances. Burton Farm Development Company has obviously
violated NC G.S. 160A - 375 (Penalty for transferring lots in unapproved
subdivisions). To approve and sign any subdivision plats without due process
may and almost assuredly expose the town to litigation for violation of its
subdivision ordinances. My advice to this board is seek legal advice before
moving forward on this issue. Commissioner Fowler moved to table any action
on-BurtonFarms Development Co-Lots 62, 62A-& 62E-in-Arlington-Place until
legal advice can be obtained from the Town'’s attorney. All ayes.

Confirm and Approve Budget Public Hearing for June 26, 2017 — Mayor Potter



reported the Board of Commissioner had been polled by email for approval of the
public hearing on the budget for June 26, 2017 at 7pm. This had to be done because
the paper failed to publish the notice when requested. Commissioner Warren
moved to approve the Budget Public Hearing for June 26, 2017 at 7pm. All ayes.

Financial Report — Commissioner Warren reported the town is financially sound.
Expenses and revenues are in line for this time of the year. The town's current assets as of
May 31,2017 are: First Citizen's Bank Checking $16,697.13; First Citizen's MM
$199,951.71; First South Bank & Savings $217,366.06; North Carolina Management Trust
is $201,791.37; Petty Cash $50.00. The town currently has 5 CDs at First South Bank &
Savings (§75,000; 50,000; $40,249.74; $21,173.62, $20,901.71; $20,174.75). Total assets
to the Town are a total of $883,768.24. Mayor Potter thanked Commissioner Warren for
his hard work!

Miscellaneous:

Commissioner Fowler moved to adjourn. All ayes

/&M@ )JZM/ Donna Scott, Town Clerk




